LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Licensing Regulatory Committee held in the Assembly Room, Kendal Town Hall, Kendal, on Monday, 4 July 2022, at 2.15 p.m.

Present

Councillors

Helen Ladhams (Chairman) Ian Wharton (Vice-Chairman)

Rupert Audland Kevin Holmes Doug Rathbone
Pete Endsor Helen Irving David Webster
Hazel Hodgson Ian Mitchell

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Brian Cooper and Andrew Jarvis.

Officers

Sean Hall Principal Specialist (Health & Environment)

Rachel Ireland Trainee Solicitor

Jane McKeon Case Management Officer (Support Services)

LR/1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

RESOLVED - That it be noted that the following Declaration of Interest was made:-

(1) Councillor David Webster raised a non-pecuniary interest for transparency by virtue of the fact that he knew one of the local private hire operators which was discussed under Minute No. LR/26 - Review of South Lakeland District Council Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licencing Policy.

LR/2 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS

RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the Agenda.

LR/3 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

RESOLVED – That it be noted that there were no members of the public present.

LR/4 REVIEW OF SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING POLICY

Note – Councillor David Webster, for the purpose of transparency, declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item by virtue of the fact that he knew one of the local private hire operators within the District; however, he was not bias or predetermined, therefore he remained in the meeting with voting rights.

The Principal Specialist for the Health & Environment provided a report on the revised Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy 2022 following public consultation. The recommendation was for the Committee to approve the revised Policy. The Policy

has been reviewed in line with Statutory and best practice guidance for taxi and licensing authorities, with the suggested amendments listed within the report. Should the Members approve this draft Policy, it is due to proceed to Overview and Scrutiny Committee prior to adoption.

The current Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy was approved by the Committee in December 2018, since that date there have been a number of changes to take into consideration.

The Officer provided an outline of the background and proposals. Subsequent amendments agreed at the Licencing Regulatory Committee on 07 February 2022 are included within the report. As are the additional proposals following public consultation. Each amendment is referenced to the relevant paragraph of the draft Policy included in brackets and are also highlighted in red within the draft Policy at Appendix 1.

The Chairman prompted questions from Members.

Members requested clarification on whether it was only new vehicles that must apply to the minimum Euro 6 standards. The Officer responded to confirm the affirmative and that all new vehicles engines must be at a minimum of Euro 6 standard. This is being implemented to ensure that new vehicles on the SLDC fleet are not emitting dangerous levels of emissions and pollution. The Council supports and will encourage the use of low-carbon alternative vehicles, particularly the use of electric vehicles for Hackney Carriage and Private Hire purposes.

RESOLVED - That the Licencing Regulatory Committee:-

- (1) Noted the contents of the report; and
- (2) Approved the draft Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Policy (Appendix 1) and agreed that this be adopted following the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee meeting unless any matters are referred back to the Committee.

LR/5 THE GAMBLING ACT 2005 - REVIEW STATEMENT OF GAMBLING LICENSING POLICY

The Principal Specialist for the Health & Environment provided a report on the revised Statement of Gambling Licencing Policy following a review and a formal consultation period.

The revised Policy has undertaken a formal consultation process in line with Regulation 7 of The Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing Authority Policy Statement) (England and Wales) Regulations 2005. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee have also been consulted on the revised Policy at their meeting on 04 March 2022. Should the revised draft Policy be approved, the matter should then progress to Full Council for approval in advance of the policy becoming the new licensing framework for stakeholders within South Lakeland District.

The Officer relayed that this Policy has sought to support and strengthen three Gambling Licencing Objectives:

- Preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder, being associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime;
- Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way;

 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling.

It was approved by the Licensing Regulatory Committee on 7 February 2022 that the revised Policy could proceed to public consultation. It was also approved at The Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 4 March 2022 that they recommend to the Licencing Regulatory Committee and Full Council that the revised Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy (Appendix 1) be adopted following the public consultation, and consideration of any comments received.

The Chairman prompted questions from Members.

No further questions were put forward.

RESOLVED: That The Licensing Regulatory Committee agreed to:-

- Note the recommendation from The Overview and Scrutiny Committee that the revised Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy be adopted following the public consultation, and consideration of any comments received;
- Note that no comments were received during the public consultation for members to consider; and
- 3) Recommend to Full Council that the Statement of Gambling Licensing Policy (Appendix 1) be adopted.

The meeting ended at 2.25 p.m.